
 

 

           Meeting Notice  
 

 

The next meeting of the Gunnison Valley 
Transportation Authority (RTA) will take place: 

March 24, 2023 at 8:00 a.m. 
In the Crested Butte Council Chambers 

located in the Crested Butte Town Offices, 
507 Maroon Avenue in Crested Butte. 

 

For copies of the agenda and minutes of 
previous meetings, please go to 

www.gunnisonvalleyrta.org/meetings  
or call Scott Truex at 970-275-0111. 

 

Two or more County Commissioners may be in 
attendance at this meeting. 

 

Also, three or more RTA Board Members may attend the monthly 
Mayor/Manager meetings which are held at noon on the first Thursday of each 

month – call Scott Truex at 970-275-0111 for the next meeting location.  

1



 

 

AGENDA – MARCH 24, 2023 
GUNNISON VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

CRESTED BUTTE TOWN OFFICES 
TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 8:00 A.M. 

 

 

 
8:00 A. INTRODUCTION  
 
CONSENT AGENDA – motion & decision requested to approve the consent agenda 

B. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA  
 C.  APPROVAL OF FEBRUARY 17, 2023 MEETING MINUTES 
 D. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S FINANCIAL REPORT  
 E. CORRESPONDENCE  
 F. OLD BUSINESS 

1) Air program reports 
2) Bus program reports  

 
REGULAR AGENDA 

8:05 F. OLD BUSINESS - continued 
3) Airport update – Rick Lamport 
4) Tourism and Prosperity Partnership report – John Norton 
5) Bus service update – Scott Truex, Jon Galle & Tasha Cifuentes 
6) Update on Bus Purchase – Scott Truex  
7) Update on Housing Purchase – Scott Truex 
8) 2022-23 winter air service update – Bill Tomcich  
9) 2023 summer air service update – Bill Tomcich 
10) Airport survey – winter 22-23 – update – Bill Tomcich & Leia Morrison 
11) Bus Storage Facility Construction update – Scott Truex & Leia Morrison  
12) Gunnison Transit Center discussion – Scott Truex & Leia Morrison 
13) Capital purchases – Scott Truex, Leia Morrison, and Danny Bartelli – discussion  

• Bus stop shelter installations – update and discussion 
• Aprons at Gunnison maintenance facility – update and discussion 

14) Review of RFQ process – Scott Truex - discussion 
 
9:25 G. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 
9:30 H. COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS & STAFF 
 
9:35 I. NEW BUSINESS 

1) Authorization of the Board Chair to sign a Master Lease Agreements with AEX, Inc. 
in order to allow AEX, Inc. to lease Lazy K, Units 104A and 107A to their employees 
providing services for the GVRTA – Scott Truex – motion & decision requested 

 

2



 

9:45 J. ADJOURNMENT OF REGULAR MEETING  
 
Optional tour of the north valley bus storage facility at Whetstone Industrial Park to follow.  
 
Next Meeting – May 5, 2023 at 8:00 a.m. in the Gunnison County Courthouse.  All times are 
approximate – the meeting may move more quickly or more slowly than indicated. 

3



GUNNISON VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY  
MEETING MINUTES  
February 17, 2023 

Board of County Commissioners Room 
A. INTRODUCTION 
Janet Farmer called the meeting to order at 8:06 am 
Board members in attendance: Janet Farmer, Jim Miles, Boe Freeburn, Jason MacMillan, Liz 
Smith, Laura Puckett Daniels 
 
Also present: Scott Truex, Leia Morrison, Bill Tomcich, Jon Galle, Jeff Moffett, Rick Lamport, 
John Norton (ZOOM), and community members. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

B. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
C. APPROVAL OF JANUARY 6, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  
D. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S FINANCIAL REPORT 
E. CORRESPONDENCE 
1) Letter of support for Town of Crested Butte grant application  
F. OLD BUSINESS 
2) Air program reports  
3) Bus program reports 

 
Liz Smith moved to approve the consent agenda with moving item 11 to before item 1 under 
new business in the agenda. Jim Miles seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
F. OLD BUSINESS 
 
3)Airport Update  
Rick Lamport thanked everyone for coming out for the grand opening of the new terminal. Rick 
discussed operations at the airport and the impact of recent flight cancellations. He also 
reported that the airport will be looking to update their rates and fees and have hired a 
consultant to perform a study and make recommendations.  
 
4)Tourism and Prosperity Partnership Association Report - John Norton reported that the 
2022/2023 ski season continues to book airline seats later in the season, more so than in the 
past. JSX is loaded to Dallas for the summer which TAPP is looking forward to. He shared that 
TAPP believes that the fact that American isn’t going to fly to Dallas this summer is good news 
as they see Denver as our most important airline hub. TAPP will be promoting the Bikes Fly 
Free to Dallas heavily.  
 
5)Bus service update  

4



Scott Truex reported that ridership in January was up 54.5% from last year, and up 2,300 
passengers over December (our previous record). Scott discussed many of the statistics that 
were included in the packet. He created an emissions report showing that the RTA buses 
reduced valley-wide carbon dioxide emissions by up to 2.3 million kilograms in 2022. He 
reported that there were over 12,000 senior trips in 2022. He also reported that ten of the last 
twelve months have been record ridership numbers. The CNG fueling station went down again 
for about fifty-two hours last month and Scott reported that we continue to have issues with this 
fueling facility. We do have two drivers in the five plex and there are two more than may be 
moving in. Staffing issues are due to lack of drivers, especially on the weekends. He reported 
that there are staffing issues on the senior bus service as well. The board had a discussion 
about potentially utilizing RTA housing for future senior bus drivers. Lastly, Scott reported that 
the electric bus demonstration was canceled by the vendor.  
 
6) Update on Bus Purchase 
Scott Truex reported that the two new CNG buses will arrive in April. We have been given the 
pre-grant award authority by CDOT. These buses will be additions to the fleet, not replacements 
which will allow us to increase our future schedule. 
 
7) 2022-23 winter air service update 
Bill Tomcich reported on final January numbers. With the addition of JSX, we exceeded the 
previous year’s numbers. Load factors were comparable, and a little higher. Our January 
numbers were the strongest that Gunnison has seen since 2009. For 2023, we have a good mix 
of capacity to meet demand. Bill reported on the MRG results and current state of bookings for 
United, American and JSX. 
 
Spring/Summer  
Bill reported that we will be down to one flight a day for the April/May schedules. There will be a 
midday turn instead of an overnight. Beginning June 2nd, the aircraft will be updated to an 
E175. This upgrade will utilize satellite-based navigation. JSX is now loaded for the summer 
with four flights per week from June 2- September 4. United’s Houston service is still yet to be 
determined. American is not planning on having any new routes from their DFW hub this 
summer. Liz asked what we might expect with the new satellite-based procedures, and Bill said 
that we would have lower landing minimums, and increased reliability.  
 
8) ) Airport survey  
Nothing to report. David Becker does appreciate being included in Rick’s IROP emails. Bill will 
follow up to see if they are still doing surveys.  
 
9) Bus Storage Facility Construction update 
Scott reported that the interior photos are in the packet. Construction is scheduled to be 
complete once the frost is off the ground. Currently, we have spent all of the 2.2 million in grant 
funds and are now spending local funds. We are on track to complete the project within our 
budget.  We anticipate that when the new buses arrive in April, we will be able to store them in 

5



there but the project won’t be fully complete until May or June. The board is invited to tour the 
facility after the next board meeting in Crested Butte in March.  
 
 
G. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
No one here for public comment 
 
 
H. COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF 
 
New Business 
 
11)  (Moved by motion of the Board) Discussion regarding the 2023-2024 Airplanners, LLC 
consulting agreement and potential conflicts of interest due to Airplanners’ relationship with the 
Montrose Airport. Liz Smith explained to the board that after thinking through it, she felt that it 
warranted a more robust discussion with the board. She does understand the proposal but sees 
the possible conflict of interest with the Gunnison/Montrose airport as a more complicated 
addition to the agreement. Janet feels comfortable with the current relationships with Air 
Planners. Jim Miles agreed with Janet. Jason asked about checks and balances to better 
anticipate potential conflicts of interest. Bill said he has been sensitive to this since day one, so 
he will be exclusively involved with Gunnison, and his new partner, Matt Skinner will be 
exclusively with Montrose. He feels very comfortable being able to maintain the separation. Liz 
Smith also spoke about how periodically going through a public RFP process can help an 
organization work through these issues. Bill did talk to Scott this fall and he didn’t see it as an 
issue. The contract is for two years. Laura Puckett Daniels added that ensuring we are 
stewarding the public funds appropriately is healthy; in two years, it would be appropriate to do 
this and expressed that public process is valuable and should be considered on an occasional 
basis. Scott shared his perspective that Airplanners, Social Firekeeper, and Scott Truex are as 
close to employees of the RTA as possible.  Scott will research what other firms are available 
and what an RFP process would look like. He will put it on the agenda for March. Jim Miles says 
this is the smoothest board he is on and that everything continues to run well with no conflicts 
and that the information is transparent. Exploration of the RFP process will be on the next 
agenda.  
 
1)Authorization of Board Chair to sign letters of support for: 
i. A second daily CDOT Bustang–Outrider bus between Crested Butte / 
Gunnison and Denver 
ii. Mountain Express grant application 
iii. Gunnison County grant application 
 
Jim Miles moved to authorize the Board Chair to sign the letters of support.  Jason 
MacMillan seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 

6



2) Resolution Number 1, Series 2023 - A RESOLUTION OF THE GUNNISON VALLEY 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY AMENDING THE POLICY FOR ELECTRONIC 
PARTICIPATION DURING BOARD MEETINGS  
Jason MacMillan moved to adopt Resolution Number 1, Series 2023. Jim Miles seconded 
the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
3) Air Command committee appointment to replace Roland Mason 
Janet recommended Liz Smith replace Roland Mason. Laura moved to appoint Liz Smith to 
the Air Command. Jim Miles seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
4) Request for return of fully refundable deposit from Fading West Development, 
LLC –  
After discussion, Jason MacMillan moved to request the return of our $380,000 fully 
refundable deposit. Jim Miles seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
5) Resolution Number 2, Series 2023 – A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE GUNNISON VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, AUTHORIZING THE 
PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY FOR THE USE OF THE GUNNISON 
VALLEYTRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY  
After discussion, Liz Smith moved to adopt Resolution Number 2, Series 2023.  Boe 
Freeburn seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
6) Authorization of the Board Chair to sign a contract for the purchase of two housing 
units at the Lazy K parcel in Gunnison  
After discussion, Liz Smith moved to authorize the board chair to sign a contract to 
purchase two housing units at the Lazy K parcel in Gunnison.  Jim Miles seconded the 
motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
7) Adoption of GVRTA Gunnison Transit Center Analysis, Criteria, and Preferred 
Location – Scott Truex reviewed the analysis and reiterated that the best location plan is the 
Gunnison Rec Center. If approved, we would like to approach the city council on March 14th 
with a plan and proposed lease of the land. Jim Miles sees a potential parking problem and 
suggested that the RTA could expand the parking with RTA paying for that expense. Boe 
Freeburn is also in support of this location in terms of convenience but to consider that phase 3 
of the Recreation Center is still under discussion. Jason agreed with the location and asked if 
any future grants coming up could be used at the four-way stop in Crested Butte. Scott said that 
would be a completely different grant. Laura Puckett Daniels is concerned with taking up field 
space. Liz Smith is also concerned with lack of parking and reduction of field space. Scott said 
that a key to a transit center is line of sight from the waiting area to the bus stops and reported 
that there could be a significant drainage issues where the west parcel is.  
 
After further discussion, Boe Freeburn moved to adopt Gunnison Transit Center Analysis, 
Criteria, and Preferred Location document as presented. Jim Miles seconded, which passed 
unanimously.  

7



 
8) Approval of Spring, Summer, & Fall bus schedule – Scott Truex  
This proposed schedule includes 28 round trips, which is up from 19 last. An increased year 
round schedule will help us employ our drivers year round, hopefully resulting in a steady work 
force of drivers. Jim Miles moved to approve the Spring, Summer, and Fall bus schedule as 
presented.  Boe Freeburn seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
9) Comments to Gunnison County regarding the Wildflower at CB subdivision land 
use application – Scott Truex 
The RTA requests that the developer agree to construct bus pullouts on both sides of County 
Rd. 740, similar to the pullouts the GVRTA has constructed along Hwy 135 as part of any 
approval. Liz questioned if the threshold of 50 units would also be used when considering 
service to future subdivisions; Scott replied that there are variables such as proximity to the 
current route. After further discussion, Liz Smith moved to approve the Comments to 
Gunnison County regarding the Wildflower at CB subdivision land use application.  Jim 
Miles seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  
 
10) Capital purchases – Scott Truex, Leia Morrison, and Danny Bartelli – 
i. Tire Changing Equipment - Three bids were procured and the equipment ordered. 
ii. Bus lifts - Three bids were procured and the equipment ordered. 
iii. Bus stop shelter installations – The bus shelters have been ordered but we have not been 
able to get any quotes for the installation. Scott Truex requests permission to circumvent the 
procurement policy and go with Lacy Construction.  
iv. Aprons at Gunnison maintenance facility. 
v. Garage door tune-ups – update and discussion 
 
After discussion, Boe Freeburn moved to move forward with Lacy Construction to install 
the four shelters in the City of Gunnison this spring in an amount not to exceed the 
budgeted item of $30,000 while allowing staff to negotiate with another entity if one 
materializes. Jim Miles seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:08 am 
 
These minutes are the final version approved by the Board of Directors of the Gunnison Valley 
Transportation Authority at its meeting on March 24, 2023. 
______________________________ 
Elizabeth K. Smith, Secretary 
 

8



 

 

January, 2023 - Financial Report: 
 

 

This report was prepared for the GVRTA Board of Directors on March 16, 2023 with 
information provided by the County Finance Department and shows posted 
revenues through January, 2023 and expenditures through January, 2023.   

Sales Tax Revenues: 

 

  

9



GVRTA Fund Reports: 

 

  

  

10



GVRTA Fund Reports:  

  

11



Summary of all Funds  

 

 

12



Air Program Reports – Winter, 22–23 as of 3/13/2023: 

All Flights – Total Seats Sold vs three of the last four years (excluding 20-21): 

 

 

All Flights – Total Load Factor vs three of the last four years (excluding 20-21): 

 

  

13



Air Program Reports – Winter, 22–23 as of 23/13/2023: 

JSX Report: 

 

 

 

14



 
15



Bus program reports – February, 2023 
 

 
 
 

Passengers by Stop – Winter, 2022 - 2023: 
 

 
  

16



Passenger Boardings by Time – Winter, 2022 - 2023: 

 

17



 

 
Late/Missed Runs & Incidents – February, 2023 

 

 

18



 

2023 Miles per Bus: 

 
 

2023 Repairs per Bus: 

  
 

19



Senior Transportation Report 

 

20



  Gunnison Valley RTA Bus Facility 
  Page 1 of 6 

Gunnison Valley RTA Bus 
Facility 
100 Bifano Rd. 
Crested Butte, CO 81224 

  

Project Status Report 

02/28/2023 
Potential change orders: 
Additional 220 outlets 

Change Orders 
Change order #1 $1,570 – addition of Knox box and Knox switch 

Change Order #2 $71,535 – Use preferred local contractors 

Request For Information 
RFI#-9 grading at NE man door - Answered 

RFI#-10 Mezzanine and Reflective Ceiling Plan below Mezzanine - Answered 

RFI#-11 trench drain insulation – Answered 

RFI#12 Light occupancy sensors – Answered 

RFI#13 Garage door opener circuits - Answered 

RFI#14 Washsink clearance - Answered 

RFI#15 Exhaust fan structure - Open 

Submittals pending 

233416 - Exhaust fans product data - resubmittal 

238200 – convection unit heaters 

260923 – interior light control shop drawings 

Submittals reviewed 

030000 – concrete mix designs 

030516 – under slab vapor barrier materials, accessories, installation instructions 

033100 – rebar shop drawings 

042613 – Masonry veneer product, accessories 
042613 - CMU product data  resubmittal  

072100 – thermal insulation foundation and under slab 
081113 – interior doors  

083613 – Overhead sectional doors product data and shop drawings 

087100 – door hardware product data  

102800 – Toilet, Bath, and Laundry Accessories 

104400 - Fire Protection Specialties 

118129 – facility fall protection substitution request and product data 

21



  Gunnison Valley RTA Bus Facility 
  Page 2 of 6 

133419 – PEMB reactions and shop drawings 

220000 – water softener 

233416 - Exhaust fans product data 

237433 - Make-up-air units product data 

260923 - Lighting controls 

262416 - Pedestal meter product data 

262416 – Pedestal meter re-submittal 

262416 – Electrical panels 

265100 – Lighting substitution request and product data 

265100 – Lighting and controls re-submittal 

323100 – fencing and gates product data 

330505 – buried utility pipes and accessories 

333400 – OWTS system and accessories 

Architect Deficiency report 
Floor finish is not acceptable. Working with contractor to determine the best solution. 

Floor areas to be resurfaced have been identified and will be ground, filled and sealed. 

Material Delivery 
      08 36 13 - Sectional Doors 
      09 21 16 - Drywall 
      22 10 05 - Gas Piping 
      26 05 33 - Conduit 
      06 83 16 - Liner Panel 
      22 30 00 - Boilers     
 
 
Known Labor or material delivery issues 
     Ductwork Shipping Delayed 
 
 

Attachments: 

4 week look ahead schedule: 
     2/27/2023 – 3/3/2023 
          Electrical Rough-in (Open Area) 
          Natural Gas Piping to Equipment 
          Liner Panel (Wash bay) 
          Finish/Textured Drywall 
      3/6/2023 – 3/10/2023 
          Continued Duct-Work 
          Continued Liner Panel (Wash bay)  
          Continued Finish/Textured Drywall 
       3/13/2023 – 3/17/2023 
           HVAC Controls 
           Door Hardware 
           Continued Duct-Work 
           Paint (Prime/1st coat) 
        3/20/2023 – 3/24/2023 
            MEP Finishes 

22



  Gunnison Valley RTA Bus Facility 
  Page 3 of 6 

             Floor Grinding / Patching 
             Air Handlers 
 

 
Overall schedule: Attached 

Progress photos and narratives: 
 

 
1. Fire Riser Assembled in Mechanical Room. 

 

23



  Gunnison Valley RTA Bus Facility 
  Page 4 of 6 

 
2. Roof Curbs for Air Handlers Installed. 

 

 
3. Sectional Garage Doors Installed in All Six Bays. 

 

24



  Gunnison Valley RTA Bus Facility 
  Page 5 of 6 

 
4. Drywall and Hollow Metal Doors Hung Oustside Mechanical Room. 

 
 
 

25



  Gunnison Valley RTA Bus Facility 
  Page 6 of 6 

 
5. Line, Ductwork, and Conduit Raceways Installation on South Wall. 

   
6. Garage Door Openers Installed. 

 

26



 Gunnison Transit Center - Preferred Draft Site Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 New   

 Parking  
  (approx. 70-75  
  added spaces) 

  

27



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

28



 Gunnison Transit Center - Draft Site Plan – Alternative #1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 New   

  Parking 
  (approx. 35-40  
  added spaces) 

  

29



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

30



 Gunnison Transit Center - Draft Site Plan – Alternative #2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 New   

  Parking 

  

31



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

32



 

     MEMO 
     March 18, 2023 
     To: GVRTA Board of Directors 
     From Scott Truex, Executive Director 

Re: RFQ process for selecting a consultant 
 
Board Members, 

At our last meeting, I was asked to draft a process which you could use to select an air service 
consultant.   A quick Google search found at least a dozen firms (see the next page) that could 
be interested in submitting their qualifications.  I believe that the best practice for choosing a 
firm would be through a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) process.   

The best process I have identified would include: 

• Create an RFQ including: 
o A narrative of our current air service program. 
o The background of our current and historical air service programs. 
o Our desired scope of work. 
o The minimum qualifications required. 
o The criteria which would be used for selecting the air service consultant. 

• Publish the RFQ for three to five weeks. 
• Request potential proposers to submit a Statement of their Qualifications (SOQ). 
• Identify a panel of Board Members that would evaluate the submissions (perhaps one 

Board Member from each jurisdiction on the RTA?)  
• The Board Member panel would then: 

o Select the top few firms for a short-list; 
 Interview short-listed firms; 
 Contact former clients and references; 
 Review the short-listed firms based upon above criteria. 

• The outcome of the review would be presented by the panel to the entire Board of 
Directors.  

• We would then attempt to negotiate a scope of work and an appropriate fee with the 
most qualified firm. 

o If the scope of work and fee cannot be negotiated then the firm would be 
disqualified and the process repeated with the next best qualified firm until an 
agreement is reached.  

• The Board would then enter into a contract as negotiated.  
• I anticipate this process would require action at two, three, or possibly four board 

meetings and require between two and four meetings of the selection panel.  
I hope this is the information that you were looking for and that it is helpful.  Please let me 
know if you have any questions.  Thank you. 

Scott Truex  

33



 

List of Air Service consultants:  

Airplanners, LLC http://www.airplanners.net/ 

ICF https://www.icf.com/ 

Mead and Hunt https://meadhunt.com/markets/aviation/air-service/ 

Volaire Aviation Consulting https://www.volaireaviation.com/ 

Community Flights https://communityflights.com/ 

Colorado Flight Alliance https://coloradoflights.org/ 

Ailevon Pacific Aviation Consulting LLC https://ailevonpacific.com/air-service-development-consulting/ 

Crawford, Murphy & Tilly https://www.cmtengr.com/air-service-development/ 

Skylark Consulting Group https://www.skylarkcg.com/air-service-development 

Campbell-Hill Aviation Group http://www.av-econ.com/ 

ASM Global https://www.asm-global.com/ 

Boyd Group International https://www.aviationplanning.com/an-air-service-strategy-diagnosis/ 

InterVISTAS https://www.intervistas.com/services/travel-mobility/ 

Forecast Inc. https://forecast-inc.com/ 

Landrum and Brown https://www.landrumbrown.com/en/ 

Armstrong Consultants https://armstrongconsultants.com/ 

 

 

34

http://www.airplanners.net/
https://www.icf.com/
https://meadhunt.com/markets/aviation/air-service/
https://www.volaireaviation.com/
https://communityflights.com/
https://coloradoflights.org/
https://ailevonpacific.com/air-service-development-consulting/
https://www.cmtengr.com/air-service-development/
https://www.skylarkcg.com/air-service-development
http://www.av-econ.com/
https://www.asm-global.com/
https://www.aviationplanning.com/an-air-service-strategy-diagnosis/
https://www.intervistas.com/services/travel-mobility/
https://forecast-inc.com/
https://www.landrumbrown.com/en/
https://armstrongconsultants.com/


MASTER LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
 
THIS LEASE AGREEMENT hereinafter known as the "Lease" is entered into this 24th 
day of March, 2023, by and between Gunnison Valley Transportation Authority (“RTA”) 
hereinafter known as the "Lessor" and AEX, Inc. (“AEX”) hereinafter known as the 
"Lessee."  
 
WHEREAS, the Lessor desires to lease the Property defined herein under the terms and 
conditions as set forth herein; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Lessee desires to lease the Property defined herein from the Lessor under 
the terms and conditions set forth herein. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the covenants and obligations contained 
herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. Property. The Landlord owns property and improvements described as Unit A, Building 
104, Lazy K Subdivision, according to the Plat of Lazy K Subdivision Building 104 as 
recorded at Reception No. 688973; and Unit A, Building 107, Lazy K Subdivision 
according to the Plat of Lazy K Subdivision Building 107 as recorded at Reception No. 
688974in the Gunnison County public records, County of Gunnison, State of Colorado, 
and the 5 units located thereon (the "Premises"). 

 
2. Term. The term of this Lease shall begin at 12:01 a.m. on March 25, 2023 and shall run 

concurrently with the Transportation Services Agreement between the parties dated June 
8, 2018. 
 

3. Rent. Lessee agrees to pay Lessor rent in monthly installments through a reduction to the 
monthly invoice it sends to the RTA under the Transportation Services Agreement.  Rent 
shall be calculated as rents received on a monthly basis from sub-tenants of Lessee, minus 
10% for management fees to be retained by Lessee. 

4. Utilities. Lessee shall be responsible for arranging for and paying for all utility services 
required on the Premises, whether on its own or through leases with sub-tenants of lessee 
and shall indemnify Lessor against any liability or damages on such account.   
 

5. Quiet Enjoyment. Upon paying the rent and performing the covenants herein contained, 
Lessee shall peacefully and quietly have, hold, and enjoy the Premises for the agreed term. 
Unless due to Lessor’s negligence or unless Lessor has failed to make repairs within a 
reasonable time after receipt of notice from Lessee, Lessor shall not be liable for injury to 
persons (including death) or damage to property resulting  from  steam, gas, electricity, 
water, rain, or snow that may flow or leak from any part of the Premises or from any pipes, 
appliances, or plumbing work from the street or subsurface, or from any other place. 

35



 
6. Use of Premises and Rent. The Premises shall be rented by Lessee and used, occupied 

and rented solely by qualified employees of Lessee as a private residence. Neither the 
Premises nor any part thereof shall be used at any time during the term of this Lease by 
Lessee or its sub-tenants for the purpose of carrying on any business, profession or trade 
of any kind. Lessee shall comply with all sanitary laws, ordinances, rules, and orders of 
appropriate governmental authorities affecting the cleanliness, occupancy, and 
preservation of the Premises and the sidewalks connected thereto during the term of this 
Lease. There shall be no smoking of any substance within the Premises by any person at 
any time. Failure to adhere to this prohibition shall constitute a default under the terms of 
this Lease. There shall not be any marijuana grown on the Premises. 

 
6.1 Persons who qualify to lease units, or portions thereof, within the Premises from Lessee 
are the following: 
 

a. AEX employees that perform duties related to RTA services for at least 30 hours per week 
on average;  

b. AEX employees that meet the Qualified Occupant terms of the City’s Master Deed 
Restriction dated June 3, 2021 and recorded on June 10, 2021, at Reception No. 676691, 
and as amended. 
 
6.2 AEX shall be responsible for ensuring that its employees are pre-approved by the 
Gunnison Valley Rural Housing Authority (“Housing Authority”) before taking possession 
of any portion of the Premises, and that they remain Qualified Occupants throughout the 
term of their tenancy.  
 
6.3 Lessee shall rent units or portions thereof to its qualified employees utilizing the form 
of lease attached hereto, including Pet Agreement and Condition of Property forms.  Rent 
shall be $1,000.00 per month per unit, plus utilities and any phone, cable or internet service 
desired by a tenant.  There shall not be more than one household consisting of 5 members 
(two adults and three children) or more than 3 unrelated adults in a unit.  No employee may 
sublease or assign their lease.  Other terms and conditions are set forth in the required form 
of lease attached hereto. 
 
6.4  Lessor shall have the right to lease one unit for the purpose of housing one RTA staff 
member should a unit be or become available.   
 
6.5  Lessor shall allow Gunnison Valley Health to lease one unit for the purpose of housing 
senior transportation staff should a unit be or become available.  The GVH employee must 
be a Qualified Occupant under the terms of the City’s Master Deed Restriction. 
 

7. Maintenance and Repair. 
7.1 Lessee shall maintain the Premises in a reasonably clean and safe manner. Lessee shall and 

shall ensure its sub-tenants: 
a) Comply with obligations imposed upon Lessee by applicable provisions of building, 

36



health, and housing codes materially affecting health and safety; 
b) Keep the Premises reasonably clean, safe, and sanitary; 
c) Dispose of ashes, garbage, rubbish, and other waste from the Premises in a clean, safe, 

sanitary, and legally compliant manner; 
d) Use in a reasonable manner all electrical, plumbing, sanitary, heating, ventilating, air-

conditioning, and other facilities and appliances in the Premises; 
e) Require persons in the Premises to conduct themselves in a manner that does not disturb 

their neighbors' peaceful enjoyment of the neighbors' property;  
f) Promptly notify Lessor if the Premises is uninhabitable as defined in Section 24 below or 

if there is a condition that could result In the Premises becoming uninhabitable if not 
remedied; and 

g) Maintain the lawn area, remove snow, and make minor interior and exterior (day-to-day 
wear and tear or damage) repairs to the Premises. 
 
Lessee shall not knowingly, intentionally, deliberately, or negligently destroy, deface, 
damage, impair, or remove any part of the Premises or knowingly permit any person within 
Lessee's control to do so. 
 

7.2. Lessor shall be responsible for maintaining casualty and comprehensive liability insurance 
on the Premises, as well as the maintenance and repair of all structural components, interior 
and exterior walls, floors, ceiling, roofs, sewer connections, plumbing, wiring, appliances, 
and glass used in connection with the Premises. More specifically: 
 
a) any repairs, replacements, restorations, or maintenance that have been necessitated 

by reason of end of useful life; 
b) any repairs, replacements, restorations, or maintenance that have been necessitated 

by sudden natural forces or acts of God, or by fire not caused by Lessee or its sub-
tenants; and 

c) any repairs, improvements, or maintenance that are required by applicable state and 
local laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations. Notwithstanding the  foregoing 
provisions of the Lease, if repairs, replacements, restorations, or maintenance have 
been necessitated by Lessee's intentional, reckless, or negligent use, misconduct, or 
abuse of the Premises, improvements, or systems then Lessee shall be responsible 
for the cost and expense for repairs, improvements, or maintenance occasioned by 
such acts or omissions. 

 
8. Alteration and Improvements. Lessee shall make no alterations to the buildings on the 

Premises without the prior written consent of Lessor. All alterations, changes, and 
improvements built, constructed, or placed on the Premises by Lessee,  with the exception 
of fixtures removable without damage to the Premises and moveable personal property, 
shall, unless otherwise provided by written agreement between the Lessor and Lessee, be 
the property of Lessor and remain on the Premises at the expiration or earlier termination 
of this Lease, and if any improvement  or fixture is removed pursuant to a written 

37



agreement between Lessor and Lessee, Lessee shall, after removal, restore the Premises to 
their condition prior to the installation of the improvement or fixture. 
 

9. Damage to Premises. If the Premises, or any part thereof, shall be damaged by fire or other 
casualty not due to negligence or willful act of Lessee, its sub-tenants, agents, or visitors, 
and Lessor shall decide to rebuild or repair the Premises, there shall be an abatement of 
rent corresponding with the time during which, and the extent to which, the Premises may 
have been uninhabitable. If the Premises should be damaged other than by negligence or 
willful act of Lessee, its sub-tenants, agents, or visitors and Landlord shall decide not to 
rebuild or repair, the term of this Lease shall end, and the rent shalt be prorated up to the 
time of the damage. 
 

10. Dangerous Materials. Lessee shall not keep or have on the Premises any article or thing 
of a dangerous, inflammable, or explosive character that might unreasonably increase the 
danger of fire on the Premises or that might be considered hazardous or extra hazardous by 
any responsible insurance company. 
 

11. Right of Entry. Lessor and its agents shall have the right at all reasonable times during 
the term of this Lease and any renewal thereof to enter the Premises for the purpose of 
inspecting the Premises, or for making any repairs or alterations thereto that Lessor deems 
necessary or desirable. 

 
12. Lessee's Covenants. Lessee also covenants and agrees as follows: 

 
12.1. To use the Premises for no purpose prohibited by the laws of the  United States, or 

the State of Colorado, or the ordinances of the City and the County in which the 
Premises are located, and all police, fire, and sanitary regulations imposed by any 
municipal, state, or federal authority, either now in force or hereafter enacted, and for 
no improper or questionable  purposes whatsoever; 

12.2. Lessee shall require its tenants to maintain hazard insurance covering damage to its 
tenant's personal property, and Lessor shall have no liability for damage to Lessee’s 
tenants’ personal property from whatever cause. 

 
13. Holdover by Lessee. Should Lessee remain in possession of the Premises after the 

expiration of the term of this Lease, a new tenancy from month to month shall be created 
between Lessor and Lessee, which shall be subject to all the terms and conditions hereof 
but shall be terminable on ten (10) days' written notice served by either Lessor or Lessee 
on the other party. 
 

14. Surrender of Premises. At the expiration of the Lease term, Lessor shall quit and 
surrender the Premises in good repair and condition, reasonable use and wear thereof and 
any damages by the elements excepted. Lessor shall surrender the keys given to Lessor for 
exterior doors to the Premises. 

38



 
15. Abandonment. If at any time during the term of this Lease Lessee abandons the Premises, 

Lessor may at its option enter the Premises by any means without being liable for any 
prosecution therefor, and without becoming liable to Lessee for damages or for any 
payment of any kind whatever, and may, at its discretion, as agent for Lessee, relet the 
Premises, or any part thereof, for the whole or any part of the then unexpired term, and 
may receive and collect all rent payable by virtue of such reletting, and, at Lessor's option, 
hold Lessee liable for any difference between the rent that had been payable under this 
Lease during the balance of the unexpired term, if this Lease had continued in force, and 
net rent for such period realized by Lessor by means of such re1ettlng. 
 

16. Default. If any default is made in the payment of rent, or any part thereof, at the times 
hereinbefore specified, or if any default is made in the performance  or compliance  with 
any other term or condition hereof, Lessor may reenter the Premises and remove all persons 
therefrom, and either sue Lessee for damages for breach of its obligations under this Lease, 
or without terminating this Lease, relet the Premises on such conditions as Lessor may  
deem best, collect and receive the rent therefor, in which  event, the  rents received  shall 
be applied first to the expenses of repossession, reletting, and collection, alteration costs, 
and expenses of preparing the Premises for reletting, and thereafter toward payment of the 
rental and of any other amounts payable by Lessee to Lessor. In no event shall Lessor be 
liable for any failure to relet the Premises or for any failure to collect any rent due upon 
any such reletting. If the sum realized upon reletting shall not be sufficient to pay Lessee’ 
obligations hereunder, Lessee will pay to Lessor any such deficiency as it accrues. No 
reentry of the Premises by Lessor shall be construed as an election on Lessor’s part to 
terminate this Lease unless a written notice of such intention is mailed to Lessee at Lessee’ 
last known address. The enumeration of the foregoing remedies does not exclude any other 
remedy, but all remedies are cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy now 
or hereafter existing at law or in equity. Lessee shall be given written notice of any default 
or breach, and termination and forfeiture of the Lease shall not result if, within three days 
of receipt of such notice, Lessee has corrected the default or breach. 
 

17. Notice to Lessor. Lessee agrees to give Lessor prompt written notice of any condition of 
the Premises that Lessee believes requires repair or maintenance or that Lessee believes 
renders the Premises uninhabitable or dangerous or hazardous to  the  life, health, or safety  
of the occupants of the Premises. 
 

18. Warranty of Habitability. Lessor warrants that the Premises are fit for human habitation. 
Lessor shall be deemed to breach this warranty in the event that: 
 
18.1. The Premises is uninhabitable as described in Section 24 below (or  in§38-12-505, 

C.R.S., as it may be amended) or otherwise unfit for human habitation; and 
18.2. The Premises is in a condition that is materially dangerous or hazardous to the Tenant's 

life, health, or safety; and 

39



18.3. The Lessor has received written notice of the condition described above in subsections 
23.1 or 23.2 and has failed to cure the problem within a reasonable time, 

 
19. Uninhabitable Residential Premises. 

19.1. Section 38-12-505(1), C.R.S., provides that the Premises is deemed uninhabitable if it 
substantially lacks any of the following characteristics: 

a) Waterproofing and weather protection of roof and exterior walls maintained in  
good working order, including unbroken windows and doors; 

b) Plumbing or gas facilities that conformed to applicable law in effect at the time  of 
installation and that are maintained in good working order; 

c) Running water and reasonable amounts of hot water at all times furnished to 
appropriate fixtures and connected to a sewage disposal system approved under 
applicable law; 

d) Functioning heating facilities that conformed to applicable law at the time of 
installation and that are maintained in good working order; 

e) Electrical lighting, with wiring  and electrical  equipment that  conformed  to  
applicable  law at the time of installation, maintained in good working order; 

f) Common areas and areas under the control of the Lessor that are kept reasonably 
clean, sanitary, and free from all accumulations of debris, filth, rubbish, and 
garbage and that have appropriate extermination in response to the infestation of 
rodents or vermin; 

g) Appropriate extermination in response to the infestation of rodents  or vermin 
throughout the Premises; 

h) An adequate number of appropriate exterior receptacles for garbage and rubbish, in 
good repair; 

i) Floors, stairways, and railings maintained in good repair; 
j) Locks on an exterior doors and locks or security devices on windows designed to 

be opened that are maintained in good working order; or 
k) Compliance with all applicable building, housing, and health codes, which, if 

violated, would constitute a condition that is dangerous or hazardous to life, health, 
or safety. 

19.2. If the Premises include areas used by Lessee and other occupants of Lessor’s property 
("Common Area"), no deficiency in the Common Area renders the Premises 
uninhabitable as set forth in section 38-12-505, C.R.S., unless it materially and 
substantially limits the use of the portion of the Premises under Lessee’s control. 

19.3. Notwithstanding the foregoing, when any condition described above is caused by 
misconduct of the Lessee, a tenant of Lessee, or the household, guest, or invitee of a 
tenant, or a person under a tenant's direction or control, the condition shall not 
constitute a breach of Lessor’s warranty of habitability. It shall not be misconduct by 
a victim of domestic violence or domestic abuse, if the condition is the result of 
domestic violence or domestic abuse, and the Lessor has been given written notice and 
evidence of domestic violence or domestic abuse as described in section 38-12-
402(2)(a), C.R.S. 

40



20. Miscellaneous.
20.1. The covenants and conditions herein contained shall apply to and bind the heirs,

personal representatives, successors, and assigns of the parties hereto, and all 
covenants are to be construed as conditions of this Lease. 

20.2. This Lease is the entire agreement of the parties hereto and may not be modified except 
by their written agreement. 

20.3. In case of any violation of this Lease by Lessee wherein Lessor engages an attorney 
to enforce this Lease, Lessee shall be liable for such reasonable attorney's fees that 
may be incurred by Lessor. 

20.4. Wherever required by the context, the singular number and the plural number shall 
each be deemed to include the other, and the masculine, neuter and feminine genders 
shall each be deemed to include the other genders. 

20.5. This Lease shall be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Lease on this 24th day of March, 
2023. 

LESSOR: LESSEE: 
Gunnison Valley Transportation Authority AEX, Inc. 

By: Janet R. Farmer, Board Chair By: 

Attest: 

By: Elizabeth K. Smith, Secretary 

41


	Meeting Notice
	Agenda
	Minutes of February Meeting
	Financial Report
	Air Program Reports
	Revised 2022 Emissions Analysis
	Bus Program Reports
	Storage Facility Progress Report
	Draft Transit Center Site Plan with options
	RFQ process memo
	Master Lease Agreement for Lazy K 104A & 107A



